
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD
AGENDA

Venue: The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Tuesday, 18th December, 2018
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby                  Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on  2 October 2018 1 - 2

4. Projects Update 3 - 4

5. Sellafield Major Environmental Permit Review Consultation 5 - 8

6. Changes to Sellafield Detailed Emergency Planning Zone 9 - 18

7. Public Accounts Committee Report on NDA Risk Reduction at Sellafield 19 - 28

8. Accelerated Magnox Reactor Decommissioning 29 - 34

9. The Relevance of the Nuclear Sector Deal to Copeland 35 - 42

10. Planning Update 

11. Date and Time of Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board will be on 
Wednesday 6 February 2019 at 2:00pm in the Bainbridge Room, The 
Copeland Centre.

Membership: Councillors Raymond Gill (Chair), Yvonne Clarkson, Peter Connolly, 
Gwynneth Everett, Linda Jones-Bulman, David Moore and Felicity Wilson.

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 2 OCTOBER 2018

Present: Councillors Raymond Gill (in the Chair); Yvonne Clarkson, Peter Connolly, 
Gwynneth Everett, David Moore and Felicity Wilson.

Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive); Steve Smith (Interim Nuclear Projects Manager); 
Mitchell McCombe (Nuclear Sector Development Officer); Heather Morrison (Senior Planning 
Officer) and Denise James (Democratic Services Officer).

SN 18/12 Apologies for Absence 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman.

SN 18/13 Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of Interests were made.

SN 18/14 Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 June 2018. 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2018 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

SN 18/15 Presentation from Nuclear Decommissioning Authority re: Business Planning Process 

Members received a presentation from Martin Liefeith, Susan Lawson and Kelly Anderson of 
the NDA (Nuclear Decommissioning Authority) on the Business plan and work in progress.

The presentation was then open to a full questions and answer session by Members.

It was agreed that once available the Annual report and accounts would be circulated to all 
Members of the Board.

SN 18/16 Update on Developments in Radioactive Waste Management. 

Consideration was given to a report updating Members on recent developments in 
radioactive waste management and Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) strategy and 
planning, specifically; 
I. the development of the NDA Business Plan; 
II. consultation on a single Radioactive Waste Strategy; 
III. recent publication of the updated Nuclear Provision; 
IV. Regulation of Nuclear Sites in the Final Stages of Decommissioning and Clean up;
V. Guidance on Requirements for Release from Radioactive Substances Regulation;
VI. Proposals to develop a National Narrative on ‘in-situ’ disposal (ISD)

RESOLVED – That the current position regarding the above developments relating to 
radioactive waste and nuclear materials management be received and noted.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



SN 18/17 Consultation on Draft Nuclear Safeguards Regulations. 

(Note: Councillor Yvonne Clarkson left the meeting prior to consideration of this item.)

Consideration was given to a report setting out the background to a recent consultation 
launched by UK Government on proposals for a new nuclear safeguards regime that will come 
into force following the UK’s departure from the European Union and the Euratom Treaty. In 
view of the fact that the closing date for the consultation was 14th September the 
consultation response was agreed by the Chair of SNEB and the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear 
and Corporate Resources prior to submission.  

RESOLVED – That the current position regarding the development of new nuclear safeguards 
and the Council’s consultation response be noted.

SN 18/18 Nuclear Projects Update 

Consideration was given to a report providing a summary update of key projects relating to 
the Councils nuclear activities specifically the Moorside Project, the North West Coast 
Connections Project and the Governments intentions for the provision of a Geological 
Disposal Facility (GDF) for higher activity radioactive waste. 

RESOLVED – That the current position be noted in relation to the Moorside Project and the 
North West Coast Connections Project and UK Government’s proposals for the development 
of a GDF.

SN 18/19 Planning Update 

The Senior Planning Officer provided the Board with an update of developments at Sellafield 
Limited.

RESOLVED – That the update be noted.

SN 18/20 Date and Time of Next Meeting 

Was noted that the next meeting of the Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board would be held on 
Tuesday 18 December 2018 at 2.00pm in the Bainbridge Room.

The Meeting closed at 4.15 pm 

Chair

Page 2



1

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 18.12.18

Nuclear Projects Update 

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith

Summary and Recommendation:

This paper provides a summary update of key projects relating to the Councils nuclear 
projects specifically the Moorside Project and the North West Coast Connections Project, 
and the Governments intentions for the provision of a Geological Disposal Facility (GDF) for 
higher activity radioactive waste.  

 1. Members are asked to note the current position in relation to the Moorside Project and 
the Government’s proposal for a Geological Disposal Facility. 

1. Moorside and North West Coast Connections Project

Members will recall that negotiations between NuGeneration Ltd’s existing company owners, Toshiba, 
and potential buyers have been on-going since May 2017. In view of the fact that no decisive progress 
had been made in this process, the Board of Toshiba, at its meeting on 8th Nov, took a decision to 
cease any further development of their involvement in the Moorside Project, resulting in closing down 
the operations of NuGeneration Ltd as of 31st March 2019. In the next 3 months the company will be 
carrying out works to remove any infrastructure on the site including boreholes and hardstanding 
areas before the site is returned to the ownership of the NDA. 

At the Council meeting in May 2018 the Council re-iterated its support for the Moorside Project. In 
view of the recent announcement by Toshiba, the Council will continue to work in collaboration with 
Government and other parties to continue to make the case for the Moorside Project and the 
contribution that the development of the site for a new nuclear power station will make to the 
national energy strategy. As previously reported consultation on a draft revised National Policy 
Statement for new nuclear power stations to cover the period 2026 to 2035 is expected in the next 12 
months and the Moorside site has been nominated for inclusion within the range of sites expected to 
be deployed within this period.

2. Geological Disposal Infrastructure Siting Process

Members will recall that the Council, in April, submitted consultation responses to two UK 
Government consultations under the Government White Paper – ‘Implementing Geological Disposal: 
A Framework for the long-term management of higher activity radioactive waste’, one on ‘Working 
with Communities’ and the other on the National Policy Statement (NPS) for GDF Infrastructure. It is 
understood that Government has reviewed the consultation responses and a decision to launch the 
process and the search for a volunteer host community is expected soon. Once an indication of the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

launch date is made known a programme of Member workshops is planned with a view to developing 
a Council position on the siting process. 

3. Further updates

Any further updates will be verbally reported to Members at the meeting.

Page 4



3

Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board 181218

Sellafield Ltd. Environmental Permits Review

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward

Summary:

1. Sellafield Ltd (SL) has applied to the Environment Agency (EA) for review of site 
environmental permits, given the projected reduction in radiological discharges to the 
environment following the completion of reprocessing operations.

2. This paper sets out the scope of the proposed changes and informs members of the 
intention to submit a response to the EA’s consultation.

Recommendation:

3. That the board delegates authority to the Chief Executive in coordination with the 
Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Affairs to form a response to the 
Environment Agency’s consultation on this permit review.

1. Background

1.1. The EA is the regulatory authority for the Radioactive Substances Activities (RSA) 
Permit, which allows SL to operate facilities which result in radioactive aqueous 
and gaseous discharges to the environment and solid waste disposals. The RSA 
Permit is subject to annual review and frequent variation to ensure it provides 
appropriate control over the environmental impact of discharges, reflects the 
latest regulations and standards and meets future business needs.

1.2. Aerial and liquid discharges from Sellafield to the environment have reduced since 
the previous permit review and upon completion of the reprocessing mission in 
2020, Sellafield’s mission will change to one of decommissioning and 
environmental remediation where the site will see a significant further reduction 
in discharges to the environment.

1.3. Members will be aware that in October 2018, the EA launched the consultation 
process for adjusting the RSA Permit for the Sellafield site. This follows an 
application by Sellafield Ltd to vary the RSA permit. The Environment Agency (EA) 
will review the current RSA Permit to reflect the end of reprocessing and the new 
circumstances of decommissioning and environmental remediation. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



4

1.4. Sellafield’s RSA Permit Application is available via the following link:

https://consult.environment-agency.gov.uk/cumbria-and-lancashire/sellafield-
rsa-major-permit-review/

2. The RSA Permit Review

2.1. The RSA Permit allows the site to operate facilities that result in radioactive 
aqueous and gaseous discharges to the environment.

2.2. Sellafield’s application is based on a fundamental review of the structure of the 
RSA Permit and is supported by a review of past discharges and consideration of 
future discharges from the Sellafield Site after reprocessing ends. This has been 
completed through close engagement with the Environment Agency.

2.3. The aim of the new RSA Permit structure and content is for Sellafield to have:

“Environmental permits which ensure ongoing protection of the environment, 
focus on the use of Best Available Techniques (BAT), provide a clear line of sight 
to permit compliance and facilitate timely Post Operational Clean Out (POCO) of 
reprocessing facilities and decommissioning of the wider site.”

2.4. The RSA Permit is being reviewed in order to ensure continued effective, 
proportionate control of discharges and greater focus on environmental 
protection. The drive for a more transparent RSA Permit is consistent with the 
principle of proportionate regulation and will encourage optimised management 
of discharges and their environmental impact through greater emphasis on the 
way that Sellafield Ltd applies the framework for demonstrating Best Available 
Techniques (BAT).

3. Scope of the Application (Permit to Review Radioactive Substances) 

3.1. The changes applied for by Sellafield are:

 Revision of the limits in the RSA Permit will enable Sellafield Ltd to manage 
site operations more flexibly, supporting acceleration of High Hazard and 
Risk Reduction in legacy facilities and demonstrating substantial and 
progressive reductions in discharges;

 Simplified compliance arrangements and/or removal of requirements where 
discharges have stopped or significantly reduced to the point that there is no 
or negligible environmental impact;

Page 6

https://consult.environment-agency.gov.uk/cumbria-and-lancashire/sellafield-rsa-major-permit-review/
https://consult.environment-agency.gov.uk/cumbria-and-lancashire/sellafield-rsa-major-permit-review/


5

 Replacement of “Plant Limits” with “Notification Levels” to ensure timely 
notification to EA of increasing trends.

3.2. SL proposes to amend the RSA Permit in two phases through this single variation 
application, to reflect the reduction in discharges associated with the end of 
operation of ThORP in 2018 and Magnox Reprocessing Plant in 2020.

3.3. The changes to the RSA Permit proposed by Sellafield Ltd are as follows:

 Removal of specified Site Limits: Sellafield Ltd is applying for the minimum 
number of limits and notification levels, consistent with ensuring adequate 
control of discharges and monitoring of process performance; and that takes 
account of the impact of discharges as well as the practicability of monitoring 
in determining which radionuclides should be limited.

 Reduction in headroom of Site Limits: Sellafield Ltd is applying for Site Limits, 
which maintain headroom to that required for normal expected operations, 
where these can be predicted. The EA’s guidance defines “normal” operation 
or decommissioning of a facility as that which includes the relevant 
operational fluctuations, trends and events that are expected to occur over 
the likely lifetime of the facility, consistent with the use of BAT. Where there 
is less certainty over future operational discharges, no change to limits has 
been applied for.

 Replacement of Plant Limits with Notification Levels: Sellafield intends to 
replace “Plant Limits” with “Notification Levels”. This change will see 
“Notification Levels” set at much lower values to ensure timely notification 
to EA of increasing trends in discharges. Under these changes, if Sellafield 
exceeds a “Notification Level”, it will not constitute a permit breach. Instead, 
exceeding the new levels will simply require Sellafield to provide the EA an 
explanation for exceeding the limit.

 Introduction of a tiered approach to Site Limits: As Sellafield’s focus moves 
to decommissioning and site remediation, overall discharges are expected to 
decrease, but the ability to predict discharge levels will diminish, because 
there is more variability in discharges associated with these activities than 
previous steady-state operations. As such, Sellafield Ltd is applying for the 
introduction of a two tier Site Limit structure. The upper tier will be below 
the current Site Limit with only one exception, where the proposed upper 
tier limit is the same as the current Site Limit, and the Lower tier limits will 

Page 7



6

be set at reduced levels to ensure close scrutiny of discharge trends. lower 
Site Limits which will be routinely in force with scope to move to a higher 
limit relatively quickly (weeks) to support and enable site clean-up and High 
Hazard and Risk Reduction activities.

4. Conclusion and Next Steps

4.1. Fuel reprocessing is due to end at the site by 2020, which will result in reduction 
in radioactive discharges to the environment. Sellafield Ltd’s environmental 
permits should reflect the new discharge profile and reflect the site’s changing 
focus from reprocessing to decommissioning. The Council should support the basis 
for the proposed changes to the Sellafield RSA Permit, in principle, on the 
understanding that regulation by the EA will remain proportionate to the activities 
on the site.

4.2. The Council should invite comment from the EA, as enforcing authority for the RSA 
Permit, on the proposed changes in terms of how they may affect Copeland’s 
communities and residents, and what the regulatory changes may be, particularly 
where regulatory activities will decrease. The Council recognizes that strong 
nuclear capabilities exists within the EA’s local nuclear team and we would 
welcome ongoing dialogue between the EA and the Council as the representative 
of our communities, to build this relationship and to develop this capability and 
shared understanding on both parts.

4.3. The Nuclear Team are coordinating with Officers from the Development 
Management and Environmental Health teams in order to form a response to the 
consultation by the closing date of 21st December 2018. 

4.4. Members should also be made aware that in summer 2019, the EA will open 
another consultation for the Sellafield Installations Permit Review which will take 
into account potential for impact on air quality due to the increased construction 
activity on the site associated with decommissioning and demolition. Copeland 
Borough Council will provide a response to this when the consultation opens. 

Page 8



3

Strategic Nuclear and Energy Board 181218

Update on changes to the UK Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and 
Public Information) Regulations

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward

Summary:

This paper is intended to inform members on the changes to the Radiation (Emergency 
Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations (known as “REPPIR”) and the 
consequences of these changes for Copeland.

Recommendation:

1. That members of SNEB note the position regarding the UK Government’s review of 
REPPIR.

1. Background

1.1 Under the Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations, 
certain obligations are placed on nuclear site license holders and local authorities with 
respect to emergency preparedness and response.

1.2 The Euratom (European Union) Basic Safety Standards Directive 2013 (BSSD) sets out 
updated safety requirements for the nuclear sector. It is mandated that the UK must 
transpose this EU directive into UK law by 6th February 2019. Brexit will have no impact 
on this.

1.3 The transposition of the EU directive into UK legislation has been a 5-year process (Since 
2013), started by the Department for Energy and Climate Change and now undertaken by 
BEIS. The Government consultation on the changes started in Aug 2017, to which 
Copeland Borough Council provided a response.

1.4 The Government’s response to this consultation is available via the following link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/revised-requirements-for-radiological-
protection-emergency-preparedness-and-response

1.5 The changes are expected to be implemented in early 2019, after which there will be a 1- 
year transition period, with an Approved Code of Practice (ACOP) published later. 
Consultation has not yet begun on the ACOP, which is expected in mid to late 2019.

2. Government Response to Consultation

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/revised-requirements-for-radiological-protection-emergency-preparedness-and-response
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/revised-requirements-for-radiological-protection-emergency-preparedness-and-response


4

The Government’s Consultation Response covers the following 5 areas, which demonstrate the 
broad focus of the REPPIR regulations. The changes have been widely consulted with local 
government, industry and internationally so as to incorporate learning following the Fukushima 
Daiichi incident.

2.1 Radiation emergency: The key change to note is a move away from potential vs actual 
dose uptake in an emergency scenario, to one of Consequence Reporting. Public Health 
England are providing technical advice to the development of this new approach.

2.2 Risk assessment and evaluation: no comment at this time, awaiting further detail to be 
provided in the ACOP.

2.3 Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ): The new regulations will place responsibility 
for setting the boundary of the DEPZ on the Local Authority (Cumbria Country Council). 
The local authority will have 2 months to review the Consequence Report and DEPZ 
requirements once received from the Site Operator.

 Formerly, setting of the DEPZ boundary was the responsibility of the Office for 
Nuclear Regulation (ONR). Understandably, the changes avoid a situation in which the 
regulator is setting and regulating the emergency arrangements.

 Of the Local Authorities that responded to the government’s consultation, all stated 
objection to taking responsibility for setting the DEPZ boundary.

 This places increased importance on the quality and level of detail in the ACOP, which 
will be relied upon as guidance by local authorities.

 Public Health England will continue to provide support to Local Authorities on DEPZ-
setting, as was provided previously to the ONR.

 CCC expects that the setting of the DEPZ boundary will be a full council decision.

2.4 Outline Planning Zones: This is a new regulatory concept, and although this is already in 
practice for the Sellafield site, the changes to REPPIR provide a statutory basis to plan for 
very low likelihood severe emergencies.  For SL the radius of the Outline Planning Zone is 
currently 50 km from the centre of site.

 BEIS have indicated that the Outline Planning Zone radius will increase following the 
changes. This will cause this to become a regional and national issue, rather than a 
local one, and therefore BEIS will undertake to develop a national response plan, 
which currently does not exist.

 Public information must be available to residents within the Outline Planning Zone 
but does not need to be provided in advance to all properties, as is required within 
the DEPZ.

 More detail is expected to be provided in the ACOP.

2.5 Emergency Workers: The changes introduce the new concept of Categorised Emergency 
Workers. These are: Cat 1 responders; Cat 2 Site operator employee with defined role; 

Page 10



5

Cat 3 Persons employed to assist in the transition from an emergency; and Cat 4 
Volunteers. 

 It is expected that the ACOP will provide vital guidance on the definitions, roles and 
responsibilities of these Categorised Emergency Workers.

3. Impact on Local Authorities

3.1 Members will recall that in 2017, the UK government made changes within REPPIR to the 
criteria by which the Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ) for nuclear sites is 
determined. This led to the changes to the DEPZ for the Sellafield site, which have already 
been implemented. Following these changes, Cumbria Country Council (CCC) briefed 
Copeland Borough Council officers on the requirements for sharing of information with 
DEPZ residents. The updated information leaflet issued to residents may be found in 
Appendix A. The off-site emergency plan has been updated by CCC to reflect the changes 
to the DEPZ and this has been found to be sufficient by the Office for Nuclear Regulation 
(ONR).

3.2 CCC Resilience Planning unit is responsible for coordinating and testing the off-site 
emergency plan and Off-Site Coordination and Response (“OSCAR”) Arrangements, which 
cover the DEPZ and Outline Planning Zone. As host of the Sellafield site, Copeland 
Borough Council sit on the OSCAR steering group as a key stakeholder.

3.3 Copeland Borough Council will have opportunity to input to and review any changes 
proposed by CCC under the new regulations, and we will continue the multi-agency 
working approach to ensure that Copeland’s best interests are represented.

3.4 It is the role of Copeland Borough Council as the Local Planning Authority to consult ONR 
and inform the CCC Resilience Planning Unit on planning applications that meet the 
current consultation criteria for proposed development within the DEPZ. Any potential 
further increase in the size of the current DEPZ is likely to lead to a greater increase in the 
number of consultations being required for this purpose.

4. Next Steps

4.1 This paper presents an overview of the regulatory changes affecting REPPIR, and 
highlights the impact for Copeland. More detail will be provided to members following 
publication of the draft ACOP for the BSSD (expected mid to late 2019) and the Council 
will respond to the government’s consultation on this. Any further information will be 
reviewed as it becomes available, and members will be kept informed.

4.2 This issue will be raised for discussion at the next meeting of the Emergency Planning sub-
group of the West Coast Site Stakeholder Group, which meets twice per year, in March 
and September. The next meeting will be in March 2019, or sooner if an extraordinary 
meeting is called to coordinate a response to further developments.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



WHAT TO DO IN AN

Emergency 

at Sellafield
This information has been prepared 

for distribution to everyone living 

within the Detailed Emergency 

Planning Zone for the Sellafield Site

1
st
 November 2018

EMERGENCY INFORMATION

 Listen to local radio

Dial the Sellafield Emergency 

Information Line on 

0808 909 8090

The new Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ) for Sellafield as 

determined by the Office for Nuclear Regulation. 

P
age 13



WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY

2 11

Introduction

This booklet is issued at regular intervals and summarises emergency 

arrangements for the Sellafield Site which are contained in the multi -

agency Sellafield Off-Site Emergency Plan. The booklet is also  

available on-line at the West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group Website 

-  www.wcssg.co.uk.

Current  scientific research indicates that areas up to 6km – 8km 

(approximately 4-5 miles) from the centre of the Sellafield Site are 

most likely to be affected following an accident. In certain 

circumstances depending on the nature of the incident some people 

living closer to the site may have to be evacuated to provide 

enhanced protection. 

This booklet gives advice on what to do in the  event of an emergency 

at the Sellafield Site. It must be stressed that the possibility of such an 

emergency is  remote and that the design and operation of all plants 

on the site is to the highest standards of safety which are 

independently monitored by the Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR).

It is important that you study this booklet carefully and 

keep it in a safe and prominent place.

*The Radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public Information) Regulations 2001         

This booklet has been produced in accordance with Government 

regulations* and replaces the similar booklet issued in 2013 which 

should now be disposed of.

 

Further Information
Further details concerning Sellafield Emergency Arrangements can 

be obtained at www.wcssg.co.uk or from:

The Secretary, West Cumbria Sites Stakeholder Group

Banna Court, Westlakes Science & Technology Park

Ingwell Drive, Moor Row 

CA24 3HW

Tel (019467) 85802

www.wcssg.co.uk

secretary@wcssg.co.uk

Resilience Manager, Resilience Unit

Cumbria County Council

Fire & Rescue Service HQ, Carleton Avenue, 

Penrith CA10 2FA

Tel (01768) 812500

www.cumbria.gov.uk

emergency.planning@cumbria.gov.uk

This publication can be provided in alternative formats on request. 

Please contact the Secretary, West Cumbria Sites Stakeholder Group 

at the address above. 

P
age 14



WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY

10 3

Your First Actions
1 GO INDOORS AND STAY THERE 

In an emergency the best thing to do is to go indoors.  

Sheltering will help reduce the effects of a radioactive 

release.

6 FOLLOW EMERGENCY SERVICES ADVICE
Listen and take note of the information provided in most cases 

by the Police. Do not act upon rumour and/or conjecture, take 

heed of official guidance only.

5 DO NOT ATTEMPT TO LEAVE THE AREA
Never be tempted to leave the area unless the Police have 

told you to do so.  You will be much safer indoors.  If you are 

outside, you are more likely to be exposed to radioactivity and 

if you try to leave you may block the roads for the emergency 

services.

4 LISTEN TO LOCAL RADIO 
BBC Radio Cumbria on 104.1 MHz FM, 206m (1458KHz) 

MW or CFM on 103.4 MHz FM.  If there is an incident, 

information and advice will be broadcast live on local radio.

3 TRY NOT TO USE TELEPHONES 
In an emergency, telephone systems may become 

overloaded and this may prevent emergency calls getting 

through.  If you must make a call, please use a landline 

phone and be brief or send a mobile text message.  

Please do not make mobile telephone calls.

2 CLOSE DOORS AND WINDOWS
If you take care to close all doors and windows, you can 

greatly reduce any radioactivity in your home.  Switch off fans 

and heating systems, put out open fires and close all 

ventilators.

Telephone Warning System

If you live within the Detailed Emergency Planning Zone for the 

Sellafield Site, you can ask to be alerted whenever a Siren is 

sounded.   A short pre-recorded message will then tell you what 

actions (if any) you need to take.

Should an Off Site Nuclear Emergency have occurred, the pre-

recorded message will tell you to go indoors, close doors and 

windows, listen to local radio and follow the advice in this booklet.

Alternative telephone numbers (e.g. mobiles, pagers, work numbers) 

can be called if your main number is unanswered.

If you wish to be placed on the system, or to change/check your 

numbers, please contact:  Cumbria Resilience Unit, Cumbria Fire & 

Rescue Service HQ, Carleton Avenue, Penrith, CA10 2FA.  

Tel (01768) 812500

E-mail: emergency.planning@cumbria.gov.uk

Please note that this system is only available to households/

premises within the Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (See map 

on back of this leaflet).

The system will be tested a number of times each year.  In advance 

of a test taking place advertisements will be placed in local print 

media. The pre-recorded message will state clearly that it is a test.

Should a Site Incident/Operational Alert have occurred you will be          

able  to carry on with your normal activity.  

POLICE

P
age 15



WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY

4 9

A pre-recorded message giving brief details of the current emergency 

state at the site is available at all times on 0808 909 8090.  Calls to this 

number are free (mobile operators may make a charge).

Food and Water Restrictions
The Food Standards Agency will produce precautionary 

advice regarding the safety of food in the early stages of an 

emergency.  Cumbria County Council’s Trading Standards 

Department will, if required by the Food Standards Agency, 

take appropriate action to prevent the sale of contaminated 

foodstuffs to the public.

Mains water supplies would not initially be affected by a 

release of radioactivity and water for drinking etc. should be 

drawn fresh from the tap.  

Sellafield Emergency 
Information Line

If you need to dial the Information Line during an emergency, please try 

to avoid using a mobile phone.

The Environment Agency, United Utilities and Copeland 

Borough Council Environmental Health Officers will arrange 

for sampling to be carried out and will issue advice 

concerning the safety of drinking water supplies.

If you have a private water source, if possible use alternative 

supplies until the safety of your water has been confirmed.

End of Emergency
When the emergency is over, information will be broadcast 

on local radio.

The Sirens are sounded a number of times each year during exercises.  

Advance notice is always given in the Whitehaven News and on BBC 

Radio Cumbria and CFM. Letters are also issued with information. If 

you hear a siren and are not sure if an exercise is taking place, find out 

more information by calling the Sellafield Emergency Information Line 

on 0808 909 8090.

Please note that the sirens are never used to sound the ‘all clear’.  The 
end of an emergency at the Site will be announced on local radio.

Site Incident/Operational 
Alert Siren (warbling noise) 

If you hear the Site Incident/Operational Alert Siren, you can carry on 
with your normal activities as the hazard is confined to the site.  If in any 
doubt, ring the Sellafield Emergency Information Line on 0808 909 

8090.

Off-Site Nuclear Emergency 
Siren (fog horn noise)

If you hear the Sellafield  Emergency Siren, go indoors, close doors and 
windows and follow the instructions in the rest of this booklet.  Listen to 
local radio for further advice.

If you wish to hear what the sirens sound like, dial 0800 022 4191 

where you can hear a recording or go to www.wcssg.co.uk where you 

can hear the sounds online. 

Household Insurance
Household insurance policies do not normally cover 

damage from radioactive releases. Claims for 

compensation following an accident will be dealt with by 

the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority and Sellafield Ltd 

who will announce details of how claims can be 

submitted.

P
age 16



WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY

8 5

What Could Happen?

The possibility of any immediate effect on health following a serious 

accident at Sellafield is extremely remote.  There may be an 

increased risk of health effects which would not become evident for 

many years.  The purpose of the above countermeasures is to make 

these risks as small as possible.

The environment around the site will be monitored for radioactivity 

and if necessary the following countermeasures will be introduced:

If an accident occurs, material might be released in the form of a 

radioactive cloud which might not be visible and this could affect areas 

downwind and close to the Site.  Under certain circumstances an 

accident leading to a release of direct radiation could also have 

implications for the Site and those members of the general public who 

are close to the Site boundary.  It is impossible for a nuclear bomb-

type detonation to occur.

A nuclear emergency could occur following a fire, explosion, seismic 

event  or serious leakage in one of the areas handling radioactive 

materials at the Sellafield Site.

Radioactive material released in an accident can affect people in any 

of the following ways:

by breathing in some of the material

by eating or drinking contaminated foods

by direct radiation from the atmosphere or material deposited 

nearby

  

Restrictions on the consumption of locally grown produce, 

milk and water.

Evacuation

Further information on what to do if an accident occurs is given in the 

following pages.

Check your next door neighbours have been warned, where 

practicable.  If you know of anyone who is elderly or infirm and 

who might have difficulty during the evacuation, please help 

them.  If you are unable to help, tell the Police about them.

If your children are at school during an emergency, you will 

naturally want to collect them as soon as possible; however, it 

may not be safe to do so.  They will be looked after as a priority 

group either at the school or evacuated to a safe place where 

they will be looked after by the school staff and those 

responding to the emergency.  Please listen to local radio for 

advice and details of the arrangements that have been made.

If you wish to stay with friends or relatives elsewhere you will of 

course be free to do so.  However, it is vital that you register 

at the Reception Centre first, so that if someone asks the 

Police about you, they will be able to say that you are safe.

If you bring pets to the Reception Centre in a car, leave them in 

the car but do not fully close all the windows.  Alternatively, 

temporary arrangements will be made for them via the 

registration process at the Reception Centre.

Re entry to any evacuated areas during the emergency will 

normally be restricted by the Police to persons having 

compelling reasons for doing so.  Arrangements could be made, 

for example, for essential feeding of livestock. Please contact 

the Police first before attempting to re-enter.

Evacuate (continued)

P
age 17



WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY WHAT TO DO IN AN EMERGENCY

6 7

What you may need to do

Evacuate
You may be advised to evacuate your home but you must remain in 

shelter until told to do so. If evacuation is implemented go directly to 

a Reception Centre.  See page 7 for step by step advice about what 

to do.  Evacuation is most likely to affect those people living/working 

immediately adjacent to the site. 

Shelter
Sheltering can dramatically reduce the levels of radiation you could 

be exposed to. Therefore do not hesitate in making your way indoors 

if notified to do so. This could be in your own home, or in the nearest 

building.  See page 7 for step by step advice about what to do.

Shelter

Follow Advice on Food and Water Restrictions
Appropriate action will be taken by the relevant authorities to prevent 

the sale of contaminated foodstuffs to the public.  Advice will also be 

given concerning the safety of drinking water supplies.  See Page 9 

for further advice.

You will be told by the Police on local radio when it is safe to go 

outside again.

Stay tuned to your local radio station

BBC Radio Cumbria on 104.1 MHz FM, 206m (1458KHz) MW

or CFM on 103.4 MHz FM.

Close all doors and windows and switch off ventilation fans, air 

conditioning and heating systems.  Put out open fires.

Quickly check your neighbours have been warned and then 

immediately go indoors and stay there.

End of the Emergency
Information concerning the end of the emergency will be broadcast 

on local radio.

Evacuate
If the Police advise you to evacuate from the area they will direct you 

to a Reception Centre, such as a local school, where you can stay 

until the emergency is over.  The Police will tell you where the 

Reception Centre is.

Use your own transport if possible and go directly to the Reception 

Centre.  If travelling by car, keep all windows closed and turn off the 

heater and ventilation.

If you have space in your vehicle, please take any neighbours who 

don’t have their own transport.

If your children are at school during an emergency, you will naturally 

want to collect them as soon as possible; however, it may not be safe 

to do so.  They will be looked after as a priority group either at the 

school or evacuated to a safe place where they will be looked after by 

the school staff and those responding to the emergency.  Please 

listen to local radio for advice and details of the arrangements that 

have been made.

If you do not have transport, the Police may ask you to walk to an 

assembly point from where a bus will take you to a Reception Centre.

P
age 18



STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 181218

House of Commons – Public Accounts Committee’s Report on Nuclear 
Decommissioning Authority: Risk Reduction at Sellafield

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward & Mitchell McCombe 

Summary:

This paper provides a summary of the findings of the Public Accounts Committee’s (PAC) report 
(“the PAC Report”) on the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority: Risk Reduction at Sellafield. The 
paper also sets out how the Council should respond to the key findings and recommendations of 
the PAC Report.

Recommendation:

1. Members are requested to note the information contained in the PAC Report and highlight 
any views that they would like to be included for consideration in the Council’s position on 
this matter.

2. Although no formal response has been invited by NDA, we will provide copies of our response 
to PAC, NDA and Sellafield Ltd. It is requested that the board delegate authority to the Chief 
Executive and Portfolio Holder for Corporate Affairs and Nuclear to develop this response, 
which will be based on Section 6 of this report.

3. That SNEB raises this paper to Executive for noting, given the significance of the issues covered 
to the local economy.

1. Background

1.1. Members will be aware that, in October 2018, the House of Commons Public Accounts 
Committee (PAC) published a report on the Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA): 
Risk Reduction at Sellafield (“the PAC report”). This built on the findings of a National Audit 
Office report in June 2018 on the NDA’s progress on reducing risk at Sellafield. The PAC 
report focuses on two main areas:

 Progress and constraints to reducing risk at Sellafield
 Governance, assurance and realising socio-economic benefits

The Council was not consulted during the PAC investigation.

1.2. The Committee last examined progress at Sellafield in March 2015 and found that major 
programmes and projects to reduce risk at Sellafield were significantly behind schedule 
and over budget. In the 2018 report, the Committee welcomed the news that Sellafield 
Limited and the NDA have since started to make changes to improve the way they run the 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



Sellafield site. However, the findings of the report reveal poor performance of major 
projects in some areas on the Sellafield site and failings in both the NDA and Department 
for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS).

1.3. While the PAC report highlights that significant milestones have been met at Sellafield’s 
high hazard facilities, and project delivery has improved across 14 major projects, the 
report finds that:

 Projects at Sellafield are predicted to over-run and cost £913m more than 
predicted, lessons are not being learned and constraints on faster risk reduction 
have not been identified;

 The NDA is not delivering effective management and oversight of the Sellafield 
Mission;

 Central government is not provided effective oversight of the NDA;
 BEIS and the NDA have failed to provide clarity on the plans for management of 

the plutonium stockpile currently stored at Sellafield;
 The NDA is failing in both its economic obligations and socio-economic presence 

locally.

1.4. Seven recommendations are made to address these failings, four of which are of 
particular importance to Copeland. All recommendations require a response within the 
next 3 to 12 months.

1.5. The PAC report and recommendations are available via the following link:

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/1375/1375.pdf

2. Progress and constraints to Reducing Risk at Sellafield

2.1. Members will already be aware that the main challenges at the Sellafield site remain the 
decommissioning of the legacy ponds and silos, and management of the plutonium 
stockpile. While it is recognized that high hazard facilities present a complex challenge, 
the NDA has repeatedly extended the forecast completion dates for decommissioning the 
two legacy silos. However, retrievals from the pile fuel cladding silo are now expected to 
be completed early, demonstrating positive progress in this area.

2.2. Whilst the NDA has achieved reductions in the delay to nine major projects, these projects 
are nevertheless still delayed, with an expected additional cost of £913 million to the 
taxpayer. Neither BEIS nor UK Government Investments (UKGI) have constructively 
challenged the NDA on these delays and overruns.

2.3. The NDA and Sellafield Ltd informed the PAC of three factors they believe hinder progress 
in the decommissioning mission: the physical congestion of site; challenges to workforce 
productivity; and the complexity of the mission at hand. Sellafield Ltd has informed the 
PAC that it is currently drafting a new masterplan which gives greater consideration to 

Page 20

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/1375/1375.pdf


site congestion. Despite this development, Sellafield Ltd and the NDA have not analysed 
how these constraints affect the pace of and options for decommissioning.

2.4. The report cites the NDA’s expenditure of £586 million of taxpayers’ money on three 
major projects since 2012, which were later cancelled in light of more cost-effective ways 
to deliver the mission. These projects include the Silo Direct Encapsulation Plant (SDP) 
and the Box Transfer Facility after estimating that both the projects would exceed original 
costs by £2.1 billion and be delayed by up to 9 years. In addition, a third project which 
included building two new storage tanks for highly active liquor was abandoned because 
Sellafield and the Office for Nuclear Regulation (ONR) agreed that previous storage tanks 
housed in reprocessing facilities could be used instead.

2.5. The PAC believes that although the NDA and Sellafield Ltd have found new cost and time 
effective ways of dealing with high hazard reduction, they have not yet demonstrated 
how new and future projects will generate cost savings for the taxpayer.

3. Management of Plutonium

3.1 The majority of the UK’s Plutonium stockpile, and 40% of all Plutonium in Europe, is held 
in secure facilities on the Sellafield site.

3.2 In 2014, the Department for Energy and Climate Change (DECC) outlined the 
government’s preference for the reuse of plutonium as fuel, which classified this material 
as a national asset rather than a waste. However, in 2018, BEIS informed the PAC that 
they were not comfortable with any option other than disposal into a future geological 
disposal facility, although Plutonium is not classified as a waste and hence is not included 
in the UK Radioactive Waste Inventory. The PAC has noted frustration with BEIS for failing 
to formulate a policy position on the future management of the UK’s plutonium.

3.3 The NDA has admitted that it is facing three challenges in dealing with the plutonium 
stockpile currently stored at Sellafield:

 The majority of plutonium canisters need to be repackaged to ensure they can be 
safely stored longer term. The NDA are in the early stages of designing a repackaging 
plant to resolve this issue, which is expected to cost £1bn more than anticipated;

 Some plutonium canisters are degrading at a quicker rate than expected meaning 
that contingency arrangements will be required before a repackaging plant is made 
available;

 Thirdly, the planned storage facilities for the plutonium canisters are expected to 
exceed original cost estimates by £200 million. The NDA has failed to set out its 
strategy to cover these additional costs.

Page 21



4. Governance and Assurance

4.1 While BEIS is directly accountable for the performance of the NDA across all of its sites, 
oversight of the body is undertaken by UKGI – a body under HM Treasury dealing with 
corporate governance and finance. 

4.2 The PAC highlighted their concern that, while the UKGI holds expertise in performance 
monitoring and budgetary matters, it does not have the capability in place for major 
project management and therefore does not deliver the necessary oversight to effectively 
monitor a nationally significant mission. Resultantly, the PAC believes that this 
“unnecessary extra layer” hinders the progress it is meant to be supporting at Sellafield 
and fails to provide sufficient expertise in holding the NDA and Sellafield to account. The 
NDA and BEIS have agreed to conduct a tailored review to identify new ways to oversee 
and govern the NDA and ultimately assess the effectiveness of the oversight given by the 
UKGI. Once this review has been completed, BEIS should write to the PAC outlining the 
findings and recommendations of the review and how they will implement them. 

4.3 In addition, the PAC also remains unconvinced that that the NDA is providing necessary 
and proper oversight of site activities. The NDA should have a clear understanding of the 
projects being undertaken at Sellafield and have strengthened their team that are 
responsible for assuring the performance information it receives from Sellafield. The NDA 
has since established a new subcommittee charged with reviewing major projects at 
Sellafield and argues that had this been in place earlier, some of the major site projects 
would have been cancelled at earlier dates. Nevertheless, while the NDA has made steps 
in the right direction, the PAC still believe it is necessary for the NDA to write to them 
outlining how assurance and oversight will be strengthened. They should do this within 
six months of the publication of the government’s inquiry into the failed Magnox contract.

5. Socio-Economics

5.1 Members will be aware that Section 1.7.1 of the Energy Act of 2004 requires the NDA to 
give “support to activities that support the social or economic life of communities living 
near designated installations or that produce other environmental benefits for such 
communities1”. In 2013, the PAC argued that, given the large sums of public money spent 
in areas with NDA activity, there was no clear evidence of the economic benefits for local 
areas. Progress has been made on this, with the NDA spending £10 million on socio-
economic activities for 2017/18. Nevertheless, it is clear that there is more to be done in 
maximizing the potential socio-economic benefits for local communities. 

5.2 On the other hand, the PAC argues that the NDA still has limited interaction with local 
education establishments. Given the scale of STEM education and skills in the local area, 

1 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/20/contents 

Page 22

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/20/contents


the NDA has accepted that their engagement in this area is poor and is looking at doing 
more work with schools, colleges and other educational facilities. 

5.3 Within 12 months the NDA should produce a new socio-economic strategy that clearly 
outlines opportunities for the local economies around NDA estates and specifically how 
these opportunities will be realized and maximized. 

6. View on Recommendations Made in the Report

6.1 The PAC report sets out seven recommendations intended to address the following key 
findings of the report:

6.2 Finding: “The NDA has recently made progress with reducing risk at Sellafield, but most 
major projects are still delayed and are expected to cost more than originally planned.”

Recommendation 1: Within three months, the NDA should write to the Committee 
explaining its plan for completing its work on mission reporting and BEIS should 
commit to publishing a comprehensive assessment of the NDA’s performance every 
3 years.

Relevance to Copeland: Copeland Borough Council has previously expressed concern 
relating to poor transparency of mission progress reporting, and therefore fully 
supports this recommendation. The NDA’s move towards publication of a Mission 
Progress Report is a positive step in the right direction and the Council should 
welcome further opportunity to scrutinise the NDA’s progress on behalf of 
Copeland’s communities. This reporting should also make clear the many successes 
that are achieved at Sellafield in progressing the site’s mission in progressing what is 
a unique decommissioning challenge.

6.3 Finding: “The NDA and Sellafield Limited have not analysed the constraints they say 
prevent faster risk reduction at Sellafield.”

Recommendation 2: The NDA should, with Sellafield Limited, analyse the impact 
these perceived constraints have on further progress at the site. It should write to the 
Committee within six months and explain how it is going to use this new 
understanding in preparation for the next spending review, the upcoming revision of 
the Sellafield performance plan and the NDA’s new strategy.

Relevance to Copeland: Copeland Borough Council recognises that the Sellafield site 
is complex and the decommissioning mission is challenging. Nevertheless, we 
support the PAC recommendation. The Sellafield mission is nationally important and 
any constraints to progress impact Copeland through extending the period of time 
that our communities are asked to accept the risk associated with nuclear activities 
on the Sellafield site. The Sellafield site is extremely congested, meaning that land 
use on the site must be demonstrated to contribute to achieving the mission. The 

Page 23



nuclear licensed site is a national asset that should be used effectively and efficiently 
to provide value for the taxpayer. More effective oversight and joined-up 
coordination of projects across the site would facilitate more effective land use and 
project delivery. There should be in place a strategy regarding relocation of non-
nuclear workers and activities offsite, which has the potential to create economic 
benefit elsewhere in Copeland. Identification of such opportunities will be essential 
to achieving some of the ambitions set out in the Industrial Strategy and Nuclear 
Sector Deal around creating the right business environment and market conditions 
to enable the nuclear supply chain and SMEs to develop and export capability.

6.4 Finding: “The NDA has not identified the lessons from project cancellations and past 
mistakes.”

Recommendation 3: The NDA should write to the Committee within three months to 
explain how it will evaluate whether its new approach will generate savings to the 
taxpayer, and how it is learning the lessons from past mistakes.

Relevance to Copeland: The NDA is mandated to clean up the UK’s nuclear legacy, 
and therefore the organisation has an obligation to meet the targets set out in the 
Nuclear Sector Deal to reduce the cost of Decommissioning by 20% by 2030. The PAC 
should recognise that Sellafield Ltd are undertaking world-first, unique projects to 
meet the unique decommissioning challenge posed by the UK’s most complex 
nuclear site. The report fails to recognise that the drive for technological advance will 
sometimes result in money being spent on projects in the short term, that are later 
made redundant by new and emerging technologies, which provide better 
alternative solutions in the long term. Equally, Sellafield through the Transformation 
should be enabled to develop, and appropriate from other industries, technology and 
techniques that could be to achieve the site’s mission quicker and cheaper, avoiding 
the need to develop costly bespoke nuclear solutions.

6.5 Finding: “Given the complexity, cost and long-term nature of the work at the site, the 
NDA’s and the BEIS’s assurance is not providing appropriate oversight of, and challenge 
to, Sellafield Limited’s performance.”

Recommendation 4: The NDA and the Department should write to [the PAC] to set 
out clearly how assurance and oversight will be strengthened. They should do this 
within 6 months of the publication of the government’s independent inquiry into the 
failed Magnox contract.

Relevance to Copeland: Given the complex nature of the Sellafield Site and the 
national significance of the mission, it is concerning that the PAC considers that 
oversight of Sellafield activities has been poor. We welcome the PAC’s 
recommendation to strengthen oversight of Sellafield activities. Copeland and its 
communities will be host to the Sellafield site for the next century and beyond, so 

Page 24



proper and adequate oversight of performance is key in maintaining stakeholder and 
public support for the national service that Copeland provides. Indeed, many 
stakeholders including the council expect that this to be provided by those 
responsible organisations in which we place our trust on behalf of Copeland’s 
communities.

However, it is acknowledged that Sellafield has some of the most complex nuclear-
legacy-related challenges in the world. If the NDA is to have oversight of Sellafield 
Ltd’s activities, it is essential that within the NDA there is sufficient nuclear 
knowledge and capability to support the decommissioning programme and to have 
adequate oversight of it. This oversight should be a support to the mission and not 
an impediment to progress. Oversight, without the presence of requisite capability, 
at any level within UKGI, BEIS, NDA, SL or the local authority, will provide poor value 
to the taxpayer.

6.6 Finding: “Central government’s oversight of the NDA is not holding the NDA to account 
effectively.”

Recommendation 5: The Department should write to the Committee setting out the 
findings and recommendations of the review, and its plan for implementing them. In 
particular, in conjunction with the Cabinet Office they should consider whether UKGI 
is playing any useful role. In its response to us, the Department must set out in detail 
how it intends to solve the problem.

Relevance to Copeland: The Council is deeply concerned about the adequacy of 
oversight and enablement of the Sellafield Transformation programme, through 
which some of the technological and social developments required to ensure 
extraction of economic value from Sellafield for the taxpayer will occur. An 
unsuccessful Transformation would cause significant harm to the local economy, and 
therefore it is incumbent upon central government to ensure that adequate 
oversight is in place at all levels from BEIS to NDA to Sellafield Ltd. The Council 
welcomes the recommended review of oversight of the NDA.

6.7 Finding: “We are not convinced that the NDA is achieving the wider economic benefits 
that would help justify the vast amounts of public investment at Sellafield.”

Recommendation 6: The NDA should, within 12 months, strengthen and publish its 
socio-economic strategy, outlining the opportunities for the wider economy and how 
it will realise those opportunities.

Relevance to Copeland: The Energy Act places an obligation upon the NDA to: 
undertake activities that deliver social, economic or environmental benefit to 
communities living near designated installations; and to ensure the development and 
maintenance of a skilled workforce to undertake nuclear decommissioning in the UK.

Page 25



It is clear that collectively the value of Sellafield has not been extracted in support of 
a sustainable West Cumbrian economy. The 2017 Oxford Economics report identified 
the risks to Copeland economy should the Sellafield Transformation be unsuccessful. 
The Council agrees with the PAC report that social and economic value from the NDA 
estate is not currently being realised. BEIS, the NDA and Sellafield Ltd must support 
and facilitate the opportunity presented by the Sellafield Transformation to 
maximise the economic impact of Sellafield as a catalyst for the future economy of 
Copeland and UK PLC. The vires of each of those organisations should be challenged 
where it does not enable this. The Council is concerned that one of the biggest 
impediments to a successful Transformation is the aversion to risk within 
government, NDA and SL, especially following recent legal cases. These organisations 
must either review or have their ways of working reviewed to avoid this impediment 
to discharge of their duties under the Energy Act, and to commercialise taxpayer-
funded opportunities of the decommissioning mission.

Sellafield has recently published a social impact strategy that was developed in 
collaboration with the local community. This strategy is well-aligned to the Council 
corporate strategy and therefore creates a strong enough position from which to 
create strong social impact in Copeland. This is complementary to the emerging 
economic Transformation Plan and the NDA should use this as a model or foundation 
to develop an estate-wide plan. This should not be delayed by the activities required 
under recommendation 6, as the current strategy is considered adequate as a 
starting point. In light of the changes following the last shear at ThORP, we are 
concerned that more strategy and no delivery would be at the expense of the 
Copeland community.

Recent investments are welcomed in skills and education at the Whitehaven School 
Campus and at the National College for Nuclear in our neighbouring authority, and 
this is a key challenge on which we will continue to work in partnership with NDA and 
Sellafield Ltd.

6.8 Finding: “The NDA’s programme to deal with the plutonium stockpile in the near-term is 
late and its costs are increasing.”

Recommendation 7: Within six months, the Department should write to the 
Committee, setting out its plan for deciding on the long-term use of plutonium. The 
NDA should also write to the Committee explaining fully its contingency 
arrangements to manage plutonium at the site, and the reasons behind cost 
escalations and delays.

Relevance to Copeland: As the community that is host to the UK’s plutonium 
stockpile, Copeland is a key stakeholder in this matter. The PAC’s recommendation 
that the NDA outline the contingency plans to manage degrading plutonium canisters 

Page 26



is welcome. As the taxpayer is due to commit £1bn to a new repackaging facility for 
this material, we are assured that the plutonium will be stored safely and securely. 
However, the longevity of the plutonium storage in the absence of a decision about 
disposition is something that the community has not been engaged on. It is 
understood that there are a number of decisions due on the preferred option for 
best use of the plutonium stockpile for UK PLC, and we look forward to reviewing 
these when the report is published.

7. Conclusion

7.1 This paper has presented an overview of the 2018 PAC Report on the NDA’s Progress on 
Risk Reduction at Sellafield. Key areas of interest to Copeland are highlighted, and a 
position on each of the key findings is proposed.

7.2 It is requested that the Board endorse this position as, while no formal response has been 
requested to the PAC Report, the content of Section 6 will be submitted to the PAC, the 
NDA and Sellafield Ltd.

7.3 It is also requested that the Board raise this paper to Executive for noting.

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 181218

Changes to Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) Strategy for 
Decommissioning of Magnox Reactors

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward

Summary:

This paper updates members on work being undertaken by the Nuclear 
Decommissioning Authority (NDA) to review the strategy (timing and sequence) of 
decommissioning of the UK’s Magnox Reactor Fleet, including Calder Hall on the 
Sellafield site.

Recommendation:

1. That members of SNEB note the position regarding the review of the Strategy for 
Decommissioning Magnox Reactors.

2. Background

2.1. There are eleven Magnox reactor sites in the UK, the first of which was Calder Hall, 
which entered operation in 1956. Since 1989 these reactors have been progressively 
reaching the end of their design lives, and the shutdown of Wylfa Unit 1 in Anglesey 
in December 2016 marked the end of operation of Magnox reactors in the UK.

2.2. The NDA is mandated to safely and securely clean up the UK’s nuclear legacy sites, 
including Magnox reactor sites. The NDA’s baseline strategy (“the Strategy”) for 
decommissioning of these reactors is to remove all fuel from the reactor core for safe 
storage and to defer dismantling for a period of up to 85 years following shutdown.

2.3. The drivers for this strategy are:

 Benefit gained from a period of radioactive decay, enabling greater personnel 
access during dismantling due to lower dose rates, and changes in the 
categorisation of wastes;

 Avoiding the need for interim storage of reactor wastes pending the availability 
of a long term disposal option;

 A predicted reduction in lifetime cost associated with deferred (and hence what 
was thought to be simpler) dismantling.

2.4. This strategy involves preparing each reactor for decades of quiescence known as Care 
& Maintenance (C&M). This includes making the reactor safe and secure, but also 
putting in place management arrangements such as site security, monitoring, 
maintenance and records management.

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



2

2.5. There are risks associated with this long period of deferral, including loss of skills and 
plant-specific knowledge, loss of records and information, increased complexity (and 
cost) of dismantling assets that have deteriorated over time, occupation of land that 
could otherwise be reused (opportunity cost) and uncertainty over future economic 
circumstances and regulatory requirements.

2.6. The sites will enter C&M at different times, but there will be a period of around 30 
years during which all sites will be in quiescence before dismantling begins. Members 
may recall recent media coverage of the news that the Bradwell site in Essex recently 
became the first to enter the C&M phase.

2.7. Defuelling of Calder Hall, on the Sellafield Site, is underway and the reactor is due to 
enter C&M in 2034.

2.8. The NDA is in the process of bringing Magnox Ltd, the operator of Magnox reactors, 
into the NDA estate as a wholly-owned subsidiary, similar to the arrangement with 
Sellafield Ltd.

3. Case for Change

3.1. The NDA is reviewing whether the decision is justified to apply this baseline strategy 
to all Magnox sites. Since the last full review of this strategy, there have been 
developments in the decommissioning arena in the UK and internationally, including:

 Advances in remote decommissioning technologies that can significantly reduce 
the need for manual access to facilities to carry out dismantling work;

 Magnox Ltd has developed significant experience in remote handling, packaging 
and storage of Intermediate and Higher Level Wastes on its sites;

 Government policies on long term management of Higher Activity Wastes now 
consider additional options including near surface disposal;

 New waste routes have become available for Low Level Wastes (LLW) enabling 
a significant proportion to be diverted to landfill;

 Increasingly, international bodies such as the International Atomic Energy 
Agency hold the view that reactor dismantling should take place as soon as 
possible.

3.2. The NDA’s Strategy 3 references early work by NDA and Magnox Ltd to research 
implications of alternative decommissioning strategies, which found that a review of 
the strategy is justified.

3.3. Firstly, after a certain period of time, short lived radioisotopes will have decayed and 
the activity of the waste inventory is dominated by radioisotopes with long half-lives. 
This means that a large proportion of the wastes will still not be suitable for 
management as LLW even after a significant period of C&M.

Page 30



3

3.4. Second, cost modelling has shown that as deferral time increases, the reduction in 
decommissioning costs (resulting from increased worker access) is offset by increased 
costs of preparation for C&M and ongoing management arrangements.

3.5. Lastly, the justification to wait until greater levels of manual access to facilities is 
possible is likely to be negated due to the advancement of remote technologies that 
could be deployed, which would remove the conventional safety risk and dose to 
humans.

3.6. Some of the work that is ongoing at Magnox sites to prepare for C&M may not be 
required if the Strategy were to change. Therefore, the NDA considers this an 
appropriate time to review the Strategy.

4. Proposed Changes to the Strategy

4.1. For each site the following strategic options are under review:

A. No deferral (i.e. immediate and continuous decommissioning)

B. Deferral with planned interventions (i.e. the current strategy)

C. Deferral with minimal interventions (i.e. doing more sooner to minimise risk and 
cost over the period of Care & Maintenance)

For B and C, there are short, medium and long deferral variants, giving 7 strategy 
options in total for each site.

4.2. The NDA are seeking to determine the optimum strategy on a site by site basis, based 
on an assessment of the factors noted below, with a view to identifying one or more 
sites for accelerated decommissioning in the near-term.

4.3. The intention is not to set the timing and sequencing of all reactors at this stage, as 
the Strategy must be flexible to future developments.

4.4. The strategy for management of the waste has not been decided. Some Magnox sites 
retain waste in purpose-built intermediate waste stores on-site, while others share 
stores between two or more sites.

5. The Process

5.1. Upon invitation from the Nuclear Legacy Advisory Forum (NuLeAF), Council Officers 
attended a NDA-led workshop on 28th November in London, where BEIS, Scottish and 
Welsh Government, other NuLeAF member authorities and Magnox personnel were 
present.

5.2. The purpose of this workshop was, “to understand Stakeholder views and concerns 
on the NDA's evolving Magnox Reactor Decommissioning Strategy and particularly 
how the optimum strategy for each site might be determined”.

Page 31



4

5.3. The workshop focused on the selection of factors and criteria that will be used by the 
NDA to determine the optimum decommissioning strategy of each Magnox reactor. 
These factors are:

1. Risk to workers and the public
2. Minimising impact to the environment
3. Socio-economics and supply chain
4. Enabling the NDA mission
5. Resources and skills
6. Logistics, transport and infrastructure
7. Lifetime cost

5.4. The proposed method by which these factors will be applied to the assessment of 
sites was not shared at the workshop.

5.5. During the workshop, each factor was discussed in turn, and all stakeholders present 
were given the chance to provide input and feedback. An overall view was also sought 
as to whether any factors were missing. Here, the key point raised was the need to 
build and maintain public support for any change and to manage expectations of all 
stakeholders. This cuts across all factors and all sites.

5.6. It was noted that compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements is 
considered essential, and therefore these do not feature within the factors, as this 
would not help to differentiate between strategies or sites.

6. Potential Benefits of Proposed Changes

6.1. The method by which the optimum strategy for each site will be determined is 
objective and will allow site-specific issues to be considered fairly and transparently. 
This optimum strategy will be influenced by consideration of potential site-specific 
benefits and dis-benefits, including:

 The nature and extent of risks vary from site to site;

 Some sites have greater potential than others to affect the environment;

 Some sites are located in or near more sensitive environments than others;

 Some sites are more sensitive to the effects of climate change than others;

 Some sites are located near to existing waste stores and others would require 
new stores;

 Some sites dominate the local economy and supply chain to a greater extent 
than others;

 Opportunities for land reuse vary by location and depending on timing;

 Visual impact of reactors is greater in some locations;

 There is an optimum sequence of decommissioning to provide learning for 
future units;

Page 32



5

 Some sites may be more suitable for trialling new technologies such as robotics 
and artificial intelligence;

 Some sites may be preferable for trials of alternative strategic options for longer 
term disposal;

 Ease of reacquiring skilled workforce, noting that the age profile of workforce is 
an issue at all sites.

6.2. All of the above could influence the lifetime cost per site. There will be an overarching 
optimum strategy which minimises total lifetime cost of decommissioning of the 
entire Magnox reactor fleet. This may be disrupted by consideration of other 
conflicting factors.

7. Impact and Opportunities for Copeland

7.1. The strategy review presents the opportunity for accelerated decommissioning of the 
Calder Hall reactor on the Sellafield site (i.e. placing this site higher up the sequence 
relative to other sites and completing reactor dismantling sooner than planned).

7.2. This could offer potential benefits to Copeland, including:

 Development of Copeland-based Magnox Reactor Decommissioning capability 
and “lead and learn” experience, which could be exported to support 
decommissioning of the UK’s other Magnox sites, and potentially transferred 
internationally and/or to other reactor designs where there is transferability (e.g. 
Advanced Gas-Cooled reactors). This could help to smooth the labour demand-
supply imbalance expected over coming years in the Sellafield supply chain, and 
would develop and retain skill and experience in Copeland.

 Freeing land for reuse or alternative development, which could contribute to 
achieving risk reduction and clean up sooner.

 Freeing land for reuse to support enable new missions might be developed in the 
nations interests, such as deployment of new and emerging technologies.

8. Next Steps

8.1. A summary workshop report will be published for comment by the NDA by 21st 
December 2018, to which the Council Officer in attendance will respond to ensure 
that this properly captures the points raised.

8.2. The NDA, with Magnox Ltd, will review the findings and use these to shape the process 
for determining the optimum strategy per site and timing/sequencing of sites. The 
Council expects transparency in development of this process and consultation as a key 
stakeholder. We have advised the NDA that we would welcome the chance to 
comment on the process before the output is finalised.

8.3. Based on completion of this initial phase of work, the NDA will write an outline 
business case to request board-level buy-in to the change of Strategy by mid-2019.

Page 33



6

8.4. As the strategy review process progresses and further information becomes available, 
members of SNEB will be kept informed via future papers.

Page 34



1

STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 181218

The Relevance of the Nuclear Sector Deal to Copeland

LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward & Mitchell McCombe

Summary:

This paper provides an update and highlights aspects of the Nuclear Sector Deal (“the Deal”) 
that are of particular interest to Copeland Borough. This paper provides context for Council’s 
response to the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership’s consultation on its Local Industrial 
Strategy, which, along with the Deal, sits under the UK’s overall Industrial Strategy.

Recommendations:

1. That members note the messages relating to the Nuclear Deal that were included in the 
response to the consultation on the Cumbria LEP’s draft Local Industrial Strategy.

1. Background

1.1. In 2018, the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) published the UK’s 
Industrial Strategy, which aims to “boost productivity by backing businesses to create good jobs 
and increase the earning power of people throughout the UK with investment in skills, industries 
and infrastructure”. The Strategy is formed around five foundations:

 Ideas: driving cost reduction and a step-change in the culture and innovative approach 
to nuclear in the UK;

 People: Providing a diverse platform of skills for nuclear and nuclear skills to support 
100,000 jobs in nuclear by 2021;

 Infrastructure: contributing low-cost low-carbon baseload electricity to the grid and 
demonstrating modern advanced manufacturing techniques;

 Business Support: supporting UK business to compete domestically and internationally 
to showcase the UK’s world-leading capabilities;

 Places: transform the economies of local and wider regional places and to enhance the 
quality of life for those who live and work there.

1.2. A number of Sector Deals have and will be agreed between BEIS and industry - partnerships 
between the government and industry on sector-specific issues, which set out how the Industrial 
Strategy will be implemented. To date, Sector Deals have been agreed for: Nuclear, Artificial 
Intelligence, Life Sciences, Construction, Automotive and Creative Industries, with more 
anticipated.

1.3. On 28th June 2018, BEIS published the Nuclear Sector Deal, with the vision of “developing UK 
innovation & skills to drive cost reduction across legacy, existing & future nuclear programmes, 
underpinned by UK supply chain capability, export growth & enhanced cross-sector leadership”.

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



2

1.4. The key aims within the deal are aligned to three themes: Cost Competitiveness, Innovation and 
Diversity and a number of key targets are set for 2030, including:

 30% reduction in the cost of nuclear new build, through implementing a different 
approach;

 20% reduction in the cost of decommissioning;

 For the sector to deliver £2bn of UK and international contract wins;

 To reach at least 40% women in nuclear.

1.5. The Deal covers a broad range of topics, some of which are relevant to Copeland and some of 
which are not. The following sections set out the aspects of the deal that are relevant to 
Copeland, aligned to the five foundations of the Industrial Strategy.

1.6. The Nuclear Sector Deal in full is available via the following link:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nuclear-sector-deal 

2. Ideas

2.1. New ideas and innovation will be needed if the nuclear sector is to reduce the cost of 
decommissioning. and new nuclear build missions, so as to deliver value to the taxpayer. The Deal 
sets out measures to stimulate new ideas and fresh thinking to meet these demands. Of particular 
interest to Copeland are the following:

 £56 million for research and development opportunities for advanced modular reactors 
(AMRs). Eight advanced reactor technology vendors are competing in a BEIS-run 
competition, through which £5-10m will be provided to enable these organisations to 
qualify their technologies for deployment in the UK.

 Small Modular Reactors are a subset of AMRs, being small versions of larger scale reactor 
technologies such as Pressurised Water Reactors.

 SMRs are designed to be manufactured in a factory environment and then transported 
to suitable sites in preparation for grid connectivity. The theory is that this will allow 
greater quality control, and reduced time on site with the associated cost and schedule 
savings relative to large scale nuclear. However, the achievement of these savings is 
dependent on the ability to scale up manufacture and deployment. Levels of investment 
required are an order of magnitude smaller than conventional large reactors.

 The Deal notes that new, smaller power plants should (re)use existing licensed sites to 
take advantage of past investment in infrastructure and grid connections, and the skilled 
workforces around them. The government will therefore be actively considering the 
question of siting for SMRs.

2.2. Copeland has been the host of many “firsts” in the nuclear industry, and this history has led to 
the development of world-leading supply chain capability in design, engineering and 
manufacturing. Copeland is also host to the Central Labs of the National Nuclear Laboratory and 
other research institutions where R&D in this field could take place. There is real potential for 
Copeland to play a leading role in the next generation of the nuclear industry, by becoming a test 
bed of new technology and engineering solutions and as the location for deployment of advanced 

Page 36

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nuclear-sector-deal


3

reactor technologies. This agenda would be reliant upon, and could help to secure, investment in 
upgrades to road, rail, grid and digital infrastructure.

2.3. The Council should consider how we can work with other stakeholders in Cumbria, including 
CoNE, the NDA, Sellafield Ltd, the LEP and the supply chain to ensure that a portion of the funding 
set out in the Deal for AMR and SMR development comes to Copeland. This will help to achieve 
Copeland’s strategic growth priority, to strengthen its position as the Centre of Nuclear 
Excellence.

3. People

3.1. By 2021, it is predicted that the nuclear workforce (both civil and nuclear) will rise from 87,000 
to 100,000 and there is a requirement for 7,000 entrants to the sector per year. To enable this, 
the Deal sets out to build a new framework to develop the right skills in the right place to meet 
industry demand. The key aspects of relevance to Copeland are:

 Members will recall a report presented to the Executive on 10th September 2018, which 
set out the findings of an Oxford Economics Report on the Socio-Economic Impact of 
Sellafield. 

 While the stated increase in nuclear workforce may be the case for the UK as a whole, 
the Oxford Economics report suggests that as Sellafield Ltd’s relationship with the supply 
chain changes as the site’s mission refocuses from reprocessing operations to 
decommissioning and remediation, up to 2,000 “surplus roles” will be created over the 
next 4 to 5 years. As Sellafield Ltd and its supply chain dominate the local economy, 
there is potential for this to impact detrimentally on Copeland.

 Therefore, Copeland’s priorities in relation to people and skills should be:

o To retain and develop the highly-skilled and experienced nuclear workforce in 
Copeland;

o To work with our large employers and growing supply chains in pushing for 
advancement of apprenticeship and graduate programmes that give people the 
right skills in the right place;

o To match the skills pipeline to the current and future skills demand of the 
economy, including but not limited to the needs of Sellafield and the potential 
skills requirement to support nuclear new build.

o To develop people to adapt to the rapidly changing nature of employment 
practices and the future of work, and to develop adaptable and transferable skills 
that can be utilised from sector to sector;

3.2. The Deal recognises that more needs to be done to replace Subject Matter Experts who will be 
lost as the older generation of nuclear scientists and engineers retire. The government has 
committed to exploring options to increase the number of nuclear-related PhDs via additional 
investment in centres for doctoral training, or similar:

 30% of the UK’s nuclear workforce, work in Cumbria, and the majority of these people 
live and work in Copeland. Copeland is host to a number of leading educational and 
research institutions, developing the next generation of the nuclear workforce.

Page 37



4

 Therefore, Copeland should benefit from additional investment in nuclear-related PhDs, 
and its research institutions have a key role to play in the delivery of this aspect of the 
deal.

3.3. The government recognises and will continue to support the activities of the Nuclear Skills 
Strategy Group (NSSG) as the lead on skills for the sector:

 As a key stakeholder, Copeland Borough Council should continue to engage with the 
Nuclear Skills Strategy Group.

4. Infrastructure

4.1. This section of the Deal focuses on the 30% reduction of costs associated with delivery of nuclear 
new build projects by 2030. The UK’s capability across the nuclear fuel cycle, much of which is 
found in Copeland, is essential in supporting new build missions.

4.2. The key item of relevance to Copeland is the target to achieve a 20% reduction in the cost of 
decommissioning and waste management compared with current estimates. Copeland provides 
a national service as the host of the Sellafield site, which is the focus of decommissioning activity 
and the location of the majority of the UK’s radioactive waste facilities. The Deal cites the current 
estimate of £119bn to clean up the NDA estate and recognises that there is an opportunity to 
improve taxpayer value from this significant spend.

 It is clear that the Council should support the delivery of better value for money to the 
taxpayer;

 Copeland’s site licensees, nuclear supply chain and research institutions have a key role 
to play in delivering the innovation required to deliver cheaper, quicker, and safer 
decommissioning solutions to achieve this target saving;

 However, over time, if the cost of decommissioning decreases, the level of funding 
received by Sellafield Ltd may reduce proportionately. Given the level to which 
Copeland’s economy is dominated by Sellafield Ltd and its supply chain, any reduction 
in the level of funding to the site could have potentially significant detrimental 
implications for Copeland and its communities.

4.3. To meet the commitment to cost reductions in decommissioning, the Government has 
commissioned a Joint Review of the Decommissioning Pipeline, which will explore opportunities 
to develop the sector’s ability to leverage its world leading capabilities in decommissioning and 
waste management to drive exports.

 The Council has a strategic growth priority to enable the export of capability developed 
in Copeland, and so this commitment within the deal should be welcomed.

4.4. The government and the sector will develop a “National Decommissioning and Waste 
Management Pipeline”, identifying ways of working aimed at driving better value. This 
framework will open up new opportunities for supply chain companies to access the 
decommissioning market. For instance, the Deal mentions how there will be increased benefits 
for these supply chain groups in the future delivery of a Geological Disposal Facility.

Page 38



5

 Given the capability in the local supply chain and SMEs, Copeland should aim to be a key 
stakeholder and should play a part in the development of this framework.

 This framework has the potential to enable the Council strategic growth priority of 
enabling diversification of the local supply chain and export of capability developed in 
Copeland.

5. Business Environment

5.1. This section of the Deal focuses on advanced manufacturing and construction, enabling UK 
businesses to win new business and facilitating nuclear exports.

5.2. The government and the sector will work together to establish a programme of work to 
demonstrate new ways of making key, high-value nuclear components, or designing systems or 
processes for new build, operations and decommissioning, leading to more contract wins and 
greater exports to the value of up to £2bn by 2030. This comes with a commitment of £20 million 
to demonstrate advanced manufacturing and construction capabilities, increasing UK 
competitiveness and reducing costs in nuclear products and services. Copeland’s interests are:

 Development of the local supply chain to play a role in the high-value manufacturing 
market for decommissioning, nuclear new build and advanced modular reactors, and to 
develop exportable capability to reduce the reliance of the local economy upon 
Sellafield;

 Exploration of the potential to host a manufacturing catapult in Copeland;

 Both of the above points could contribute to Copeland’s ability to attract new nuclear 
developments.

 Ensuring that a portion of the £20m investment comes to Copeland and that Copeland’s 
economy benefits from this £2bn export market.

5.3. In line with the government’s ambition to make the UK the best place to start and grow a 
business, this Sector Deal aims to give UK companies the support they need to maximise contract 
wins in new build, waste and decommissioning and future reactor technologies.

 This aligns with the Council’s ambition to attract new business and investment.

5.4. The government will provide up to £10m (to be matched by up to £20m from industry) to support 
the sector’s development of a national supply chain competitiveness and productivity 
improvement programme. The Nuclear Advanced Manufacturing Research Centre has predicted 
that a successful programme could create and sustain 12,500 jobs.

 The Deal states that some of this funding may also be made available to regional 
applications of the programme, in the form of a Nuclear Clusters Development 
programme. However, it goes on to say that this will be based in the south west of 
England. The Council should enquire into whether any of this fund is available for 
Nuclear Cluster Development elsewhere and should seek to build on the already strong 
relationship with the South West, which has already yielded investment in the National 
College for Nuclear Northern Hub.

Page 39



6

5.5. Up to 2035, the World Nuclear Association forecasts around £1.2tn will be spent building new 
plant, £3.5bn a year on long-term operations, and £100bn on waste management and 
decommissioning, plus spend on associated professional services. This section of the Deal focuses 
on increasing the UK’s share in international exports of nuclear capability across the fuel cycle. A 
commitment is made to a Department for Investment and Trade-led programme to assess the 
global market and identify accessible value for the UK. It will also consider areas where strategic 
and operational support from government could be of most benefit to help the sector’s ambitions 
to secure up to £2bn of new contracts by 2030.

 Much of the UK’s exportable capability in nuclear operations, waste management, 
decommissioning, nuclear construction, project management and nuclear-literate 
professional services resides in the Sellafield workforce and supply chain;

 Therefore, the Council, with other key stakeholders including the NDA, Sellafield Ltd and 
local industry leaders, has a responsibility to engage with DIT to ensure that Copeland’s 
“offer” is communicated and that this programme benefits Copeland.

6. Place 

6.1. This section of the deal focuses on: boosting regional capability and expertise, creating world-
leading research centres, delivering high-value local jobs, and creating clusters of nuclear 
expertise.

6.2. It is welcome that this section of the Deal recognises that “the value of the nuclear sector’s local 
contribution cannot be understated”, citing Cumbria specifically as the most significant 
contributor to the UK’s nuclear economy.

6.3. The proposed advanced manufacturing and construction programme in the Deal will be delivered 
through a factory hub and existing facilities around the country, bringing investment and boosting 
the UK’s manufacturing base. This investment supports the emergence of a North West Nuclear 
Arc Consortium linking Anglesey in Wales to the north west of England.

 The Council should seek to ensure that investment made through this programme 
benefits Copeland.

 The Council should seek to engage with the North West Nuclear Arc to play a part in an 
initiative that has potential to bring investment and provide export opportunities.

6.4. The Deal recognises that the National Nuclear Laboratory is one of the world’s leading nuclear 
research centres. Reference is made to the development of research centres, which have 
potential to attract inward investment and create highly skilled roles. However, the two monetary 
commitments in the Deal are for Fusion (£86m) and Thermal Hydraulics in Wales (£40m). 

 Copeland is already world-renowned as the Centre of Nuclear Excellence due to our 
unrivalled nuclear capability, including our R&D facilities at NNL and Dalton Institute. 
The Council should seek to leverage the Nuclear Sector Deal to generate investment in 
expansion of these facilities.

Page 40



7

 The Council should seek to understand whether the investments set out in the Deal 
extend beyond Fusion and Thermal Hydraulics, and then ensure that this investment 
benefits Copeland.

6.5. The Deal refers to the trickle-down effect on local economies of high-paid jobs in the sector. It 
goes on to commit to enabling more people to benefit from high value, technical jobs in nuclear 
by supporting the Nuclear Skills Strategy Group’s Nuclear Skills Strategic Plan.

 The sector does generate well-paid jobs, which simultaneously boost the local economy 
through induced spending, but also, due to the inability of other local industries to 
compete, has the potential to create nuclear supply chains that become a skills drain 
from other sectors, as has been seen in Copeland.

 The sustainability of careers and the balance of supply and demand upon labour in the 
nuclear sector in Copeland is unlikely to be provided by supply-side initiatives (such as 
those set out in the Deal) only.

 The Council should have a voice in the alliance of Local Enterprise Partnerships across 
nuclear regions in Somerset, Cumbria and East Anglia, which have come together to 
drive further initiatives to benefit nuclear communities.

6.6. The government and industry will consider the development of a network of nuclear supply chain 
clusters to unlock further growth, investment and jobs by supporting SMEs in nuclear regions and 
providing greater exposure to new contract opportunities.

 Copeland, as the Centre of Nuclear Excellence, is already one such cluster. This should 
not mean that investment is focused elsewhere – it is stated in the Deal that this Supply 
Chain Clusters programme will be implemented in the South West.

7. Interplay with the Local Industrial Strategy

7.1. Members will be aware that Cumbria LEP are due to publish their Local Industrial Strategy in 
2019. This document should set out how Cumbria’s growth strategy will help to deliver the UK 
Industrial Strategy. It should also provide a high level strategy from which local growth strategies 
can flow down.

7.2. As the Nuclear Sector Deal sets out measures by which government and industry can cooperate 
to achieve the UK Industrial Strategy, it could reasonably be expected that the Local Industrial 
Strategy for Cumbria should make significant reference to and identify local implications of the 
Nuclear Sector Deal.

7.3. On 14th December 2018, the Council provided a response to the consultation on the Local 
Industrial Strategy. An overarching observation was that the nuclear sector is not afforded 
proportionate representation in the Local Industrial Strategy, which fails to recognise the 
importance of the nuclear sector to both Copeland and Cumbria more broadly and that only 
cursory reference is made to the Nuclear Sector Deal.  The Council has also emphasised its 
diversification agenda and the need to encourage sector growth outside nuclear to develop a 
more balanced, vibrant and resilient economy.

Page 41



8

8. Next Steps

8.1. BEIS and the Nuclear Industry Council have formed a Nuclear Sector Deal Portfolio Office, to 
oversee the implementation of the Deal. This is structured around five working groups: Value 
Build; Legacy Waste; Winning UK Business; Skills; Innovation; and R&D.

8.2. The Council will seek to understand the process by which local authorities can engage with these 
working groups to influence the implementation of the Deal, working with local stakeholders that 
are already engaged. This may be through the Cumbria LEP or by building closer working 
relationships with BEIS and the Nuclear Industry Council.

8.3. Members should also be made aware of the following upcoming milestones:

 Winter 2018: Update published for the Nuclear Skills Strategy Group’s strategic plan

 Spring 2019: Completion of joint review of decommissioning pipeline

 June 2019: Annual review of the Nuclear Sector Deal

Page 42


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on  2 October 2018
	4 Projects Update
	5 Sellafield Major Environmental Permit Review Consultation
	6 Changes to Sellafield Detailed Emergency Planning Zone
	REPPIR Appendix A - Emergency Response Information Leaflet
	What to do in an emergency booklet  (Purple).vsd
	Page-1
	Page-2
	Page-3
	Page-4
	Page-5
	Page-6



	7 Public Accounts Committee Report on NDA Risk Reduction at Sellafield
	8 Accelerated Magnox Reactor Decommissioning
	9 The Relevance of the Nuclear Sector Deal to Copeland

